
 
 

SOUTHEND-ON-SEA CITY COUNCIL 
 

Cabinet 
 

Date: Thursday, 4th April, 2024 
Time: 6.30 pm 

Place: Council Chamber - Civic Suite 
Contact: Colin Gamble  

 
Email: committeesection@southend.gov.uk  

 
 

A G E N D A 
  
1   Apologies for Absence  

 
  

2   Declarations of Interest  
 
  

3   Waste Collection Contract Procurement (Pages 3 - 40) 
 Joint report of the Executive Director (Finance and Resources) and Executive 

Director (Environment and Place) 
 
 

 
 
 
Chair & Members: 
 
Cllr C Campbell, Cllr T Cox (Chair), Cllr M Davidson (Vice-Chair), Cllr H Boyd, Cllr K Buck, 
Cllr J Courtenay, Cllr D Garston, Cllr D Jarvis, Cllr J Lamb and Cllr D Nelson 
 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
1. Executive Summary   

 
1.1. On 11 March 2024, Place Scrutiny Committee met (pre-Cabinet) to consider 

the Waste Collection Contract Procurement update paper which was to be 
considered at Cabinet on 14 March 2024. 

 
1.2. On 14 March 2024, Cabinet noted the report and indicated that it would like 

the matter to be referred to Full Council to ensure the widest possible 
engagement with all councillors. Cabinet also promoted an all-member drop-
in session on 19 March 2024 to provide an opportunity for any councillors to 
meet with officers and raise any further items they wish for Cabinet to consider 
feeding into the closing stage of the competitive dialogue process and to 
discuss any other concerns or queries. 

 
1.3. Full Council considered the Cabinet report and covering paper at its meeting 

on 21 March 2024 where there was further opportunity for councillors to 
suggest any further matters they felt should be included in the final stages of 
the procurement.  

 
1.4. This report now asks Cabinet to consider the matters raised at Place Scrutiny 

on 11 March, the drop in on 19 March and at Council on 21 March 2024 and 
make the necessary decisions to allow the procurement for the Waste and 
Street Cleansing contract to continue.  
 
 

2. Recommendations  
 

a) That Cabinet acknowledges the suggestions and ideas put forward 
by Councillors as set out in Appendix 3, 4 and 6 to this report. 

Meeting:   Cabinet 
Date:  4 April 2024 

Classification:  Part 1 with Part 2 (Confidential) 
Appendices 

Key Decision:  No 
Title of Report: Waste Collection Contract Procurement  

Executive Director:  Joe Chesterton (Finance & Resources) and Alan Richards 
(Environment & Place) 

Report Author: Andrew Barnes (Head of Internal Audit) and Jo Gay (Head 
of Environment) 

Executive Councillor: Cllr Tony Cox (Leader, Cabinet Member for SEND) and 
Cllr Meg Davidson (Deputy Leader, Cabinet Member for 
Environment) 

Agenda 
Item No.

3

3



 
b) That Cabinet agrees the recommendations set out in the 14 March 

2024 Cabinet report (Appendix 1) and repeated below for ease of 
reference, subject to any clarifications and/or amendments that 
Cabinet may wish to be included in the final stage of competitive 
dialogue following consideration of the grouped themes of feedback 
at Appendix 7 (to follow) such matters to be noted in the Cabinet 
minute. 

 
Recommendations repeated from 14 March 2024 Cabinet Report where it 
was recommended that Cabinet (NOTE: the references below are 
references to the relevant sections and appendices to the 14 March 
20024 Cabinet Report): 
 

a) notes the internal audit and external legal assurance provided in 
respect of the procurement process; 

b) notes the service parameters that have been developed through 
extensive dialogue with bidders during the ongoing competitive 
dialogue process and incorporated into the service specification 
as set out in Appendix 1; 

c) agrees the updated service parameters as set out in paragraph 
6.4; 

d) notes the findings of internal audit on the decision making 
process as set out in Part 2 (Confidential) Appendix 3; 

e) notes that approval for the programme has been provided, but 
through a different decision-making route than that originally 
planned as set out in the 14th June 2022 Cabinet report; 

f) notes that the procurement process will proceed to its conclusion 
in accordance with the procurement process that is already in 
place as set out in Table 1 in section 6 of this report; 

g) requires the Executive Director for Environment and Place to 
make future recommendations to the Leader, Cabinet Member for 
SEND and Deputy Leader, Cabinet Member for Environment to 
agree any final terms, conditions, service delivery principles, 
service specifications and other commercial and operational 
matters as required to conclude the procurement process; 

h) receives a further cabinet report in due course to agree the award 
of the contract; 

i) agrees that a further report on the whole procurement process is 
prepared following the conclusion of the procurement.  

 

3. Background 

4



 
3.1. On 11th March 2024, Place Scrutiny Committee (in undertaking pre-Cabinet 

scrutiny) considered the Waste Collection Contract Procurement update 
report in advance of Cabinet on 14th March 2024 (Report attached at 
Appendix 1 along with, at Appendix 2, the Part 2 (Confidential) 
Appendices to that report. (Confidential) Appendix 2: Summary of 
external legal advice and Appendix 3: Internal Audit findings to the 
Cabinet paper - Waste Collection Contract Procurement update. 

 
3.2. At Place Scrutiny Committee, councillors were invited to make 

recommendations to Cabinet and to raise questions regarding the 
specification for the new contract.  
 

3.3. The suggestions and questions from Place Scrutiny Committee are listed at 
Appendix 3.  

  
3.4. At its meeting on 14th March 2024, Cabinet noted the report and requested 

that the matter be referred to Council to ensure the widest possible opportunity 
for engagement by all Councillors and openly invited all councillors to engage 
in a drop-in session arranged for 19 March 2024. 

 
3.5. The ideas and matters captured at the drop-in session on 19 March 2024 are 

set out at Appendix 4.  
 
3.6. Council was presented with a further report (attached at Appendix 5 without 

the Appendices to that report again to avoid repetition).  Council debated 
the matter; some additional matters were raised, and these are set out at 
Appendix 6. Council then noted the 21 March 2024 Council report. 

 

3.7. This report therefore draws together all this engagement activity and there will 
need to be a supplementary further Appendix 7 to follow which will draw 
together all the matters raised into themes for Cabinet’s consideration and to 
enable Cabinet to provide its view on the further matters it would like officers 
to introduce into the final stage of competitive dialogue process.  Appendix 7 
will regrettably need to follow due to the work required after Council on 21 
March 2024 to draw all the issues together for consideration by Cabinet. This 
will be published as soon as possible. 
  

4. Reasons for Decisions 
 

4.1 The rationale for each of the recommendations is set out in the 14 March 2024 
Cabinet report. 

 
5. Other Options  
 
5.1. As detailed in the 14 March 2024 Waste Collection Contract Procurement 

update paper. 
    

6. Financial Implications  
 

5



6.1. As detailed in the 14 March 2024 Waste Collection Contract Procurement 
update paper. 
 

6.2. There may be financial implications once the various elements have been 
presented to bidders through competitive dialogue. Officers will work to 
minimise any financial impact on the annual contract price and in any event 
the relevant matters can be reported back to Cabinet when Cabinet considers 
the contract award. 
 

7. Legal Implications  
 
7.1. As detailed in the 14 March 2024 Waste Collection Contract Procurement 

update paper. 
 

8. Policy Context 
 
8.1. As detailed in the14 March 2024 Waste Collection Contract Procurement 

update paper. 
 

9. Carbon Impact  
 
9.1. As detailed in the 14 March 2024 Waste Collection Contract Procurement 

update paper. 
 

   
10. Equalities  
 
10.1. As detailed in the 14 March 2024 Waste Collection Contract Procurement 

update paper. 
 
 

11. Consultation  
 

11.1. As detailed in the 14 March 2024 Waste Collection Contract Procurement 
update paper. 
 

  
12. Appendices   

 
• Appendix 1: 14 March 2024 Cabinet report - Waste Collection Contract 

Procurement update  
 

• Appendix 2: Part 2 (Confidential) – Appendices to March 2024 Cabinet 
report: 

 

• Part 2 (Confidential) Appendix 2a: Summary of external legal advice; 
and  

• Part 2 (Confidential) Appendix 2b: Appendix 3: Internal Audit findings to 
the Cabinet paper - Waste Collection Contract Procurement update 

 

6



• Appendix 3: Matters Raised at Place Scrutiny Committee on 11 March 
2024 
 

• Appendix 4: Matters raised during the councillor drop-in session on 19 
March 2024. 
 

• Appendix 5: Report to Council 21 March 2024 (without appendices to avoid 
duplication). 
 

• Appendix 6: Matters raised at Council on 21 March 24. 
 

• Appendix 7: All matters raised, themed for consideration by Cabinet (to 
follow) 

 
 

13. Report Authorisation 
 

This report has been approved for publication by: 

 Name: Date: 
S151 Officer  Joe Chesterton 25.3.2024 
Monitoring Officer  Susan Zeiss 25.3.2024 
Executive Director(s) 
 

Alan Richards 22.3.2024 

Relevant Cabinet Member(s) 
 

Cllr Tony Cox – Leader 
Cllr Meg Davidson – 
Cabinet Member for 
Environment 

25.3.2024 
25.3.2024 

 

7



This page is intentionally left blank



9

Alan Richards
Text Box
Appendix 1 to 4 April 2024 Cabinet Report



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



Document is Restricted

23

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

25

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



29



30



31



32



33



This page is intentionally left blank



35

Alan Richards_1
Text Box
Appendix 5 to 4 April 2024 Cabinet Report



36



37



38



Appendix 6 - Further matters raised at Full Council 21 March 2024. 

1 Concern 6.3 – Cabinet has decided wheelie bins – can we leave it up to 
provider?  

2 Lots of Councils are going away from wheelie bins. 
3 Available space, narrow pavements, flytipping  - these matters need to be 

gone through in detail 
4 Councillors have not seen what contractor will do if no space for wheelie 

bins. 
5 Gridlock on collection day 
6 Why are we putting an essential service out to a company that makes a profit 

– should be brought in house. 
7 People will have to pay for branded black bags 
8 Sack collection will be 2 weekly, this wont work for some areas 
9 Recycling targets are not in place for street waste 
10 New contract should have had recycling front and centre 
11 Carbon tax changes will add £2m p.a. from 2028 
12 Street cleansing – fly tipping hotspots on periphery of city have slower pick 

ups 
13 Leaf fall collection every 6 weeks in Autumn is insu icient and will lead to 

flooding 
14 Bulky waste can be collected for free 
15 Gra iti should be cleaned within 4 hours in playgrounds 
16 Pumpkin should be collected after Halloween 
17 How will collections work in places near hospital 
18 Displacement of cars from driveways to make room for bins 
19 Needs a personalised approach 
20 We are providing too much autonomy to the provider – there remain too 

many unknowns  
21 Is the appeal process legal? Didn’t get an answer 
22 Please can Christmas trees be collected promptly. 
23 Need to ensure that there is some flexibility in the contract 
24 Need to tackle poor state of our streets 
25 Need clarity on how HMO’s will be dealt with 
26 Can we look to put common bins in central wards 
27 Could road cleansing be done by SEPS? 
28 Need to look at soft plastic recycling, battery collection banks, recycling tin 

foil kids competition (like Reading Council) 
29 Concerns about street cleaning and gully cleaning not answered at scrutiny 
30 Waste from businesses 

 

 

39



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Waste Collection Contract Procurement
	Appendix 1 - Cabinet 14 March 2024 Part 1
	Appendix 2a - PART 2 Confidential - Summary of legal advice
	Appendix 2b - PART 2 Confidential - Internal Audit Findings
	Appendix 3 - Place Scrutiny 11 March 2024
	Appendix 4 - Drop in Session 19 March 2024
	Appendix 5 - Council 21 March 2024 Part 1
	Appendix 6 - Matters raised at - Council 21 March 2024 Part 1




